From: Joseph Carman <Joseph.Carman@blaby.gov.uk>

Sent: 12 Sep 2023 10:57:22

To: DMS.Development.Control@blaby.gov.uk

Cc:

Subject: FW: 23/0610/OUT | Outline application for residential development of three dwellings with associated
infrasture (layout, scale and means of access for approval) | Church Farm Station Road Elmesthorpe
Attachments:

From: William Kelly <William.Kelly@leics.gov.uk>

Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 10:43 AM

To: Stephen Dukes <Stephen.Dukes@blaby.gov.uk>

Cc: Planning Mailbox <planning@blaby.gov.uk>

Subject: 23/0610/0UT | Outline application for residential development of three dwellings with associated infrasture (layout,
scale and means of access for approval) | Church Farm Station Road Elmesthorpe

Dear Stephen,

23/0610/0UT | Outline application for residential development of three dwellings with associated infrasture (layout, scale and
means of access for approval) | Church Farm Station Road Elmesthorpe

Archaeological considerations

Thank you for your consultation on this application. We recommend that you advise the applicant of the following archaeological
requirements, for post-determination trial trenching.

The Leicestershire and Rutland Historic Environment Record (HER) notes that the site is situated within the Elmesthorpe Deserted
Medieval Village (HER ref: MLE70). The partially surviving earthwork remains of four post-medieval ponds (MLE69) lie partly
within the application area. The earthworks were surveyed in the 1980s and further work carried out in 2007/8 indicated that
they appear to be 17th century ornamental garden ponds, now partly destroyed and partly buried. Recent archaeological
evaluation to the north of Clickers Way revealed a number of archaeological features dating to the medieval period, and possible
prehistoric and Roman features (MLE19847). The site has been subject to previous development, however there may be areas
where the disturbance is limited. There is therefore a potential for buried archaeological remains within the application area,
which may be impacted by the re-development proposals.

In accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Section 16, paragraph 194, the development area is of
archaeological interest and also has the potential for further unidentified archaeological deposits. Based upon the available
information, it is anticipated that these remains whilst significant and warranting further archaeological mitigation prior to the
impact of development, are not of such importance to represent an obstacle to the determination of the application (NPPF
paragraph 195).

While the current results are sufficient to support the planning decision, further post-determination trial trenching will be required
in order to define the full extent and character of the necessary archaeological mitigation programme.

NPPF paragraph 205, states that Local Planning authorities should require developers to record and advance understanding of the
significance of any heritage assets to be lost (wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their importance and the impact of
development, and to make this evidence (and any archive generated) publicly accessible.

In that context it is recommended that the current application is approved subject to conditions for an appropriate programme of
archaeological mitigation, including an initial phase of exploratory trial trenching, followed, as necessary by intrusive and non-
intrusive investigation and recording. The Historic & Natural Environment Team (HNET) will provide a formal Brief for the latter
work at the applicant’s request.

If planning permission is granted the applicant must obtain a suitable written scheme of Investigation (WSI) for both phases of
archaeological investigation from an organisation acceptable to the planning authority. The WSI must be submitted to the
planning authority and HNET, as archaeological advisors to your authority, for approval before the start of development. They
should comply with the above mentioned Brief, and with relevant Chartered Institute for Archaeologists “Standards” and “Code of
Practice”. It should include a suitable indication of arrangements for the implementation of the archaeological work, and the
proposed timetable for the development.



We therefore recommend that any planning permission be granted subject to the following planning conditions (informed by
paragraph 37 of Historic England’s Managing Significance in Decision-Taking in the Historic Environment GPA 2), to safeguard any
important archaeological remains potentially present:

1. No demolition/development shall take place/commence until the necessary programme of archaeological work has been
completed. The programme will commence with an initial phase of trial trenching to inform a final archaeological
mitigation scheme. Each stage will be completed in accordance with a written scheme of investigation (WSI), which has
been [submitted to and] approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no
demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed mitigation WSI, which shall include the
statement of significance and research objectives, and

. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent person(s) or
organisation to undertake the agreed works

. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition of
resulting material. This part of the condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance
with the programme set out in the WSI.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory archaeological investigation, recording, dissemination and archiving

The Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) must be prepared by an archaeological contractor acceptable to the Planning

Authority. To demonstrate that the implementation of this written scheme of investigation has been secured the applicant must

provide a signed contract or similar legal agreement between themselves and their approved archaeological contractor.

The Historic and Natural Environment Team, as advisors to the planning authority, will monitor the archaeological work, to ensure
that the necessary programme of archaeological work is undertaken to the satisfaction of the planning authority.

Please will you ensure a copy of the Decision Notice is sent to us in due course, to enable us to continue to monitor and safeguard
the archaeology of this site. Should you or the applicant have any further queries please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours sincerely,
William
William Kelly | Senior Planning Archaeologist (Heritage)| Historic & Natural Environment Team | Planning, Historic & Natural

Environment Department | Room 200, County Hall | Glenfield | Leicestershire | LE3 8RA
& 01163050039 | @ 07871733637 | [A William.Kelly@Ieics.gov.uk
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This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, any reading, printing, storage,
disclosure, copying or any other action taken in respect of this e-mail is prohibited and may be unlawful. If you are not the
intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately by using the reply function and then permanently delete what you have
received. Incoming and outgoing e-mail messages are routinely monitored for compliance with Leicestershire County Council's
policy on the use of electronic communications. The contents of e-mails may have to be disclosed for requests under Data
Protection or Freedom of Information legislation. Details about how we handle information can be found at
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/data-protection

The views expressed by the author may not necessarily reflect the views or policies of the Leicestershire County Council.

Attachments to e-mail messages may contain viruses that may damage your system. Whilst Leicestershire County Council has
taken every reasonable precaution to minimise this risk, we cannot accept any liability for any damage which you sustain as a
result of these factors. You are advised to carry out your own virus checks before opening any attachment.
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